
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

DISTRICT OF MASSACHUSETTS 
 

COLLECTIVE AND CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 

Plaintiff Laurie Pearl (“Plaintiff” or “Pearl”), on behalf of herself and all others similarly 

situated, by and through her attorneys, brings this lawsuit against Clearlink Partners, LLC 

(“Clearlink” or “Defendant”), seeking all available remedies under the Fair Labor Standards Act, 

29 U.S.C. §§ 201, et seq. (“FLSA”) and under Massachusetts state laws.  

The foregoing allegations are made on personal knowledge as to Plaintiff’s own conduct 

and on information and belief as to the acts of others.  

INTRODUCTION 

1. In order to control costs and increase revenue, insurance companies rely on 

thousands of employees who perform non-exempt utilization review work for clients across the 

United States (“Utilization Review Employees”) to ensure that providers render healthcare that 

meets hyper-specific, standardized criteria for insurance coverage.  Utilization Review Employees 

review thousands of requests for medical treatment against strict, rigid criteria without deference 

to clinical knowledge.  Clearlink employs Utilization Review Employees who regularly work 

upwards of forty (40) hours per week in order to service the utilization review needs of healthcare 

organizations around the nation.  

2. This case is about Clearlink’s knowing and improper classification of Plaintiff and 
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other similarly situated Utilization Review Employees as exempt from the FLSA, who, as a result, 

did not receive overtime pay for hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours in a workweek. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

3. Jurisdiction over Plaintiff’s FLSA claim is proper under 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) and 28 

U.S.C. § 1331. 

4. This Court has supplemental jurisdiction over the Massachusetts state law claims 

under 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a) because they are so related to this action that they form part of the same 

case or controversy. 

5. Venue in this district is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391.  Clearlink has been 

actively conducting business in the State of Massachusetts.  A substantial portion of the events 

described herein took place in this District.   

PARTIES 

6. Plaintiff Laurie Pearl is an individual residing in Weymouth, Massachusetts.  Pearl 

worked for Defendant as a Utilization Review Employee between approximately February 2019 

and October 2019.  Pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b), Pearl has consented in writing to participate in 

this action.  See Exhibit A. 

7. Defendant Clearlink Partners, LLC is incorporated in Georgia.  Its headquarters are 

located at 574 Gramercy Drive, Marietta, GA 30068.  Clearlink currently does business in the 

District of Columbia and numerous states, including but not limited to Massachusetts, West 

Virginia, Connecticut, Georgia, Pennsylvania, North Carolina, New Hampshire, Rhode Island, and 

Florida.    

8. At all times material to this action, Defendant has employed individuals engaged in 

commerce or in the production of goods for commerce and/or handling, selling, or otherwise 
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working on goods or materials that have been moved in or produced in commerce by any person, 

as defined by 29 U.S.C. §§ 206-207. 

9. At all relevant times, Defendant has conducted business under the laws of 

Massachusetts, including in this judicial district, and has employed Utilization Review Employees 

in this judicial district. 

10. Defendant’s annual gross volume of sales made or business done exceeds $500,000. 

COLLECTIVE AND CLASS DEFINTIONS 

11. Plaintiff brings Count I of this lawsuit pursuant to FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) as a 

collective action, individually, and on behalf of herself and the following class: 

All individuals who worked for Clearlink Partners, LLC providing utilization 

reviews in the United States between three years from the date this Complaint is 

filed and the present and were not paid overtime (the “FLSA Collective”). 

 

12. Plaintiff brings Counts II and III of this lawsuit as a class action pursuant to Fed. 

R. Civ. P. 23, individually, and on behalf of herself and the following class: 

All individuals who worked for Clearlink Partners, LLC providing utilization 

reviews in Massachusetts between three years from the date this Complaint is filed 

and the present and were not paid overtime (the “Massachusetts Class”). 

 

13. The FLSA Collective and the Massachusetts Class are together referred to as the 

“Classes.” 

14. Plaintiff reserves the right to redefine the Classes prior to notice, and thereafter, as 

necessary. 

FACTS 

15. Clearlink Partners, LLC (“Defendant” or “Clearlink”) is a professional services 

firm that provides staffing and consulting services to Managed Care Organizations (“MCOs”) and 

various healthcare providers with a focus on supplementing and servicing utilization review needs. 
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16. Clearlink’s Chief Executive Officer characterized Clearrlink as a firm “[Focused] 

on Utilization Management (UM) and Care Management (CM) transformation and high-profile, 

time sensitive, special projects.” LinkedIn, Bruce B. Cox https://www.linkedin.com/in/bruce-b-

cox-95647614 (last visited Feb. 28, 2020). 

17. Clearlink hires and trains employees to service the utilization review needs of 

Clearlink clients.  Specifically, Clearlink offers “on- and off-site utilization review extension teams 

on mid-term and long-term assignments.”  Clearlink Partners, Provider Solutions 

https://clearlinkpartners.com/provider-solutions (last visited Feb. 28, 2020). 

18. Clearlink employed Plaintiff and continues to employ other Utilization Review 

Employees to perform non-exempt utilization review work for clients across the United States 

under different job titles including, but not limited to, “Prior Authorization Nurse,” “Care 

Management Consultant,” “Concurrent Review Nurse,” “Complex Case Manager,” and 

“Utilization Review Nurse” (collectively, “Utilization Review Employees”). 

19. Plaintiff and Utilization Review Employees provide remote utilization review 

services for Defendant’s clients.   

20. For her entire tenure, Plaintiff worked under the supervision of Defendant.  On 

information and belief, members of the FLSA Collective and Massachusetts Class were similarly 

supervised by Defendant, notwithstanding the specific Clearlink client to which they were 

assigned.  

The Non-Exempt Nature of Plaintiff’s and Other Utilization Review Employees’ Work 

21. Plaintiff conducted utilization reviews for Defendant and other Utilization Review 

Employees continue to conduct utilization reviews for Defendant. 

22. Utilization reviews consist of extracting objective data from a particular patient’s 
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electronic medical record and entering that patient’s data into a computer program that determines 

whether a request submitted for healthcare services meets hyper-specific, standardized criteria for 

insurance coverage.   

23. Utilization Review Employees do not independently make these assessments; 

rather, the assessments are generated by the computer program. 

24. The criteria that Plaintiff and other Utilization Review Employees were and are 

required to adhere to, both or one or the other, are called InterQual® and Milliman.  Other similarly 

hyper-specific, standardized criteria are sometimes used in addition to InterQual® and Milliman 

that varied by the state of the healthcare provider (e.g., Plaintiff and other Utilization Review 

Employees in Massachusetts also adhered to MassHealth criteria). 

25. Specifically, to conduct utilization reviews, Utilization Review Employees utilize 

software that automatically generates a series of “yes or no” questions that correspond to objective 

data in patient electronic medical records (e.g., Will the patient be discharged with oxygen?) and 

that corresponded with the requested healthcare service.   

26. Plaintiff and other Utilization Review Employees were and are required to answer 

these questions by reviewing objectively identifiable patient information contained in electronic 

medical records provided with each request.   

27. Answering these questions in compliance with Clearlink’s policies preclude the 

exercise of discretion and independent judgement.  

28. Once the Utilization Review Employees input the objective data into the computer 

program, the computer program then indicates whether the requirements for insurance coverage 

were met.  If they were met, the computer program generates a decision of coverage approval. 

approves coverage.   
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29. Utilization Review Employees did not and do not independently determine if the 

requirements were met for insurance coverage. 

30. If the criteria for insurance coverage were not met, Utilization Review Employees 

do not have the discretion to deny requests.  Plaintiff and other Utilization Review Employees 

were and are required to escalate the request to a supervisor who makes the final decision regarding 

insurance coverage.  

31. Specifically, the computer software automatically packages a denied request and 

corresponding answers entered by Utilization Review Employees into a document called an 

“Activity” that Utilization Review Employees were and are required to escalate to a supervisor. 

32. If, for any reason, a “yes or no” question could not be objectively answered based 

on the electronic medical records provided and without assumptions, Utilization Review 

Employees are required to escalate the request to a supervisor. 

33. The work of Utilization Review Employees was subject to scrutiny, review, and 

oversight by managers and supervisors.  For instance, Plaintiff’s work was routinely and 

comprehensively reviewed by the healthcare organization that Clearlink contracted with to provide 

utilization review services.  

34. In addition to the in-house review of Plaintiff and other Utilization Review 

Employees’ work, third-party organizations are often engaged to conduct reviews and audits of 

Plaintiff and other Utilization Review Employees’ work. 

35. Utilization review work, in general and as performed by Plaintiff and other 

Utilization Review Employees, is routine and rote.   

36. Although Defendant hired Registered Nurses and Licensed Practical Nurses to 

conduct utilization reviews, Defendant’s utilization review procedures precluded Plaintiff and 
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other Utilization Review Employees from exercising any advanced knowledge, discretion, and/or 

independent judgement.  

37. In fact, the exercise of any advanced knowledge, discretion, and/or independent 

judgement would compromise the completion of successful utilization reviews which are 

contingent upon objectively and exclusively reviewing the information contained in the electronic 

medical records against hyper-specific, standardized criteria for insurance coverage.  

38. Utilization Review Employees work remotely and do not directly or indirectly 

engaged with patients.  

39. Utilization Review Employees do not exercise or otherwise rely upon any nursing 

knowledge or experience to complete the duties of their job.  

40. Utilization Review Employees do not have final, binding authority to approve 

coverage. 

41.  As Clearlink employees, Utilization Review Employees do not engage in nursing 

of any nature (e.g., bedside, telehealth, etc.) and do not supply any medical care or 

recommendations in a clinical or non-clinical setting regarding patient care. 

42. As Clearlink employees, Utilization Review Employees do not offer any analysis 

or advice on healthcare rendered or proposed treatment plans. 

Plaintiff and Class Members Did Not Receive Overtime 

43. Plaintiff worked five (5) days per week, typically between fifty (50) and sixty (60) 

hours per week.  Due to the volume of utilization reviews required of Plaintiff and other Utilization 

Review employees, 10-13-hour days were and are routinely required.  Plaintiff observed other 

Utilization Review Employees worked similar schedules. 

44. Plaintiff and Class Members routinely worked in excess of forty (40) hours per 
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workweek, but were not paid overtime compensation as required by the FLSA and state law. 

45. Plaintiff and Class Members were required to clock in and out on the time 

timekeeping software, TimeStar, however, they were not compensated for more than (40) hours of 

work per week. 

46. Although the workload assigned to Plaintiff and Class Members typically required 

them to work more than forty (40) hours per week, Defendant failed to pay them one and one-half 

(1 ½) times their regular rate of pay for hours in excess of forty (40) hours per week, as required by 

the FLSA. 

47. Instead, Plaintiff and Class Members were misclassified as exempt and were not 

paid overtime compensation. 

Defendant Willfully Violated the FLSA 

48. Defendant failed to make, keep and preserve records with respect to Plaintiff and 

other Class Members sufficient to determine their lawful wages, actual hours worked and other 

conditions of employment as required by federal and state law. See 29 U.S.C. § 211(c); 29 C.F.R. 

§§ 516.5(a), 516.6(a)(1), 516.2(c) (requiring employers to maintain payroll records for three years 

and time sheets for two years, including the exact number of hours worked each day and each 

week); Mass. Gen. L. c. 151 § 15 (same). 

49. Defendant’s offer letter dated February 02, 2019, listed Plaintiff’s position as a 

“Fulltime Non-Exempt” Prior Authorization Nurse.   

50. Despite signing Defendant’s offer, Plaintiff was denied overtime compensation for 

hours worked over forty (40) in a work week.  

51. Plaintiff made several complaints about nonpayment of overtime for hours worked 

over forty (40) in a work week, but was denied overtime compensation.   
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52. Defendant and its senior management had no reasonable basis to believe that 

Plaintiff and Class and Collective Members were exempt of the FLSA.  Rather, Defendant either 

knew or acted with reckless disregard of clearly applicable FLSA and state law provisions in 

misclassifying Plaintiff and the FLSA Collective as exempt and failing to pay them overtime.  Such 

willfulness is demonstrated by, or may be reasonably inferred from, Defendant’s actions and/or 

failures to act. 

COLLECTIVE ACTION ALLEGATIONS UNDER THE FLSA 
 

53. Plaintiff brings this lawsuit pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) as a collective action on 

behalf of the FLSA Collective defined above. 

54. Plaintiff desires to pursue her FLSA claim on behalf of any individuals who opt-in 

to this action pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b). 

55. Plaintiff and the FLSA Collective are “similarly situated,” as that term is used in 

29 U.S.C. § 216(b), because, inter alia, all such individuals worked pursuant to Defendant’s 

previously described common pay practices and, as a result of such practices, were not paid the 

full and legally mandated overtime premium for hours worked over forty (40) during the 

workweek.  Resolution of this action requires inquiry into common facts, including, inter alia, 

Defendant’s common compensation, time-keeping and payroll practices. 

56. Specifically, Defendant misclassified Collective Members as exempt and failed to 

pay overtime at time and a half (1½) the employee’s regular rate as required by the FLSA for hours 

worked in excess of forty (40) per workweek. 

57. The similarly situated employees are known to Defendant and are readily 

identifiable and may be located through Defendant’s business records and the records of any 

payroll companies Defendant use.   

58. Defendant employs many FLSA Collective Members throughout the United States. 
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These similarly situated employees may be readily notified of the instant litigation through direct 

means, such U.S. mail and/or other appropriate means, and should be allowed to opt into it pursuant 

to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b), for the purpose of collectively adjudicating their similar claims for overtime 

and other compensation violations, liquidated damages, interest, and attorneys’ fees and costs 

under the FLSA. 

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 

59. Plaintiff also brings this action as a class action pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23 on 

behalf of herself and the Massachusetts Class defined above. 

60. The members of the Massachusetts Class are so numerous that joinder of all 

members is impracticable.  Upon information and belief, there are more than forty (40) members 

of the Massachusetts Class. 

61. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately represent and protect the interests of the 

Massachusetts Class because there is no conflict between the claims of Plaintiff and those of the 

Massachusetts Class, and Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the Massachusetts Class.  

Plaintiff’s counsel are competent and experienced in litigating class actions and other complex 

litigation matters, including wage and hour cases like this one. 

62. There are questions of law and fact common to the proposed Massachusetts Class, 

which predominate over any questions affecting only individual Massachusetts Class members, 

including, without limitation: whether Defendant violated and continues to violate Massachusetts 

law through its policy or practice of misclassifying Utilization Review Employees and not paying 

overtime compensation. 

63. Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the Massachusetts Class in the 

following ways, without limitation:  (a) Plaintiff is a member of the Massachusetts Class; (b) 
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Plaintiff’s claims arise out of the same policies, practices and course of conduct that form the basis 

of the claims of the Massachusetts Class; (c) Plaintiff’s claims are based on the same legal and 

remedial theories as those of the Massachusetts Class and involve similar factual circumstances; 

(d) there are no conflicts between the interests of Plaintiff and the Massachusetts Class members; 

and (e) the injuries suffered by Plaintiff are similar to the injuries suffered by the Massachusetts 

Class members. 

64. Class certification is appropriate under Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(3) because questions 

of law and fact common to the Massachusetts Class predominate over any questions affecting only 

individual Class members. 

65. Class action treatment is superior to the alternatives for the fair and efficient 

adjudication of the controversy alleged herein.  Such treatment will permit a large number of 

similarly situated persons to prosecute their common claims in a single forum simultaneously, 

efficiently, and without the duplication of effort and expense that numerous individual actions 

would entail.  No difficulties are likely to be encountered in the management of this class action 

that would preclude its maintenance as a class action, and no superior alternative exists for the fair 

and efficient adjudication of this controversy.  The Massachusetts Class is readily identifiable from 

Defendant’s own employment records.  Prosecution of separate actions by individual members of 

the Massachusetts Class would create the risk of inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect 

to individual Massachusetts Class members that would establish incompatible standards of conduct 

for Defendant. 

66. A class action is superior to other available methods for adjudication of this 

controversy because joinder of all members is impractical.  Further, the amounts at stake for many 

of the Massachusetts Class members, while substantial, are not great enough to enable them to 
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maintain separate suits against Defendant. 

67. Without a class action, Defendant would retain the benefit of its wrongdoing, which 

will result in further damages to Plaintiff and the Massachusetts Class.  Plaintiff envisions no 

difficulty in the management of this action as a class action. 

                                                           COUNT I 

Violations of the FLSA 

(On Behalf of Plaintiff and the FLSA Collective) 

 

68. All previous paragraphs are incorporated as though fully set forth herein. 

69. The FLSA requires that covered employees be compensated for all hours worked 

in excess of forty (40) hours per week at a rate not less than one and one-half (1½) times the regular 

rate at which he is employed.  See 29 U.S.C. § 207(a)(1). 

70. Defendant is subject to the wage requirements of the FLSA because Defendant is 

an “employer” under 29 U.S.C. § 203(d).   

71. During all relevant times, the members of FLSA Collective, including Plaintiff, 

were covered employees entitled to the above-described FLSA’s protections. See 29 U.S.C. § 

203(e). 

72. Plaintiff and the FLSA Collective are not exempt from the requirements of the 

FLSA.  Plaintiff and the FLSA Collective are entitled to be paid overtime compensation for all 

hours worked over forty (40) in a workweek pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 207(a)(1) and 29 C.F.R. § 

778.112. 

73. Defendant’s compensation scheme applicable to Plaintiff and the FLSA Collective 

failed to comply with either 29 U.S.C. § 207(a)(1) or 29 C.F.R. § 778.112. 

74. Defendant knowingly failed to compensate Plaintiff and the FLSA Collective at a 

rate of one and one-half (1½) times their regular hourly wage for hours worked in excess of forty 
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(40) hours per week, in violation of 29 U.S.C. § 207(a)(1) and 29 C.F.R. § 778.112. 

75. Defendant also knowingly failed to create, keep and preserve records with respect 

to work performed by Plaintiff and the FLSA Collective sufficient to determine their wages, hours 

and other conditions of employment in violation of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 211(c); 29 C.F.R. §§ 

516.5(a), 516.6(a)(1), 516.2(c). 

76. In violating the FLSA, Defendant acted willfully and with reckless disregard of 

clearly applicable FLSA provisions. 

77. Pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b), employers, such as Defendant, who fail to pay an 

employee wages in conformance with the FLSA shall be liable to the employee for the unpaid 

minimum and overtime wages, an additional equal amount as liquidated damages, reasonable 

attorney’s fees, and costs of the action. 

                     COUNT II 

Violation of the Massachusetts Fair Minimum Wage Act Regarding Overtime 

(On Behalf of Plaintiff and the Massachusetts Class) 
 

78. All previous paragraphs are incorporated as though fully set forth herein. 

79. The Massachusetts Fair Minimum Wage Act (“FMWA”) requires that employees 

be compensated for all hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week at a rate not less than 

one and one-half (1 ½) times the regular rate at which he is employed.  See Mass. Gen. L. c. 151 

§1A. 

80. Defendant is subject to the wage requirements of the FMWA because Defendant is 

an “employer” under Mass. Gen. L. c. 149 § 1.   

81. During all relevant times, the members of Massachusetts Class, including Plaintiff, 

were covered employees entitled to the above-described FMWA’s protections. See Mass. Gen. L. 

c. 149 § 1. 

82. Plaintiff and the Massachusetts Class are not exempt from the requirements of the 
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FMWA.  Plaintiff and the Massachusetts Class are entitled to be paid overtime compensation for 

all hours worked over forty (40) in a workweek pursuant to Mass. Gen. L. c. 151 §1A. 

83. Defendant’s compensation scheme applicable to Plaintiff and the Massachusetts 

Class failed to comply with Mass. Gen. L. c. 151 §1A. 

84. Defendant knowingly failed to compensate Plaintiff and the Massachusetts Class at 

a rate of one and one-half (1½) times their regular hourly wage for hours worked in excess of forty 

(40) hours per week, in violation of Mass. Gen. L. c. 151 §1A. 

85. Defendant also knowingly failed to create, keep and preserve records with respect 

to work performed by Plaintiff and the Massachusetts Class sufficient to determine their wages, 

hours and other conditions of employment in violation of the FMWA, Mass. Gen. L. c. 151 §15. 

86. Pursuant to Mass. Gen. L. c. 151 §1B, employers, such as Defendant, who fail to 

pay an employee wages in conformance with the FMWA shall be liable to the employee for the 

unpaid minimum and overtime wages, liquidated damages, reasonable attorney’s fees, and costs 

of the action. 

                     COUNT III 

Violation of the Massachusetts Wage Act, 

G.L. c. 149 §§ 148 and 150 

Failure to Timely Pay Due and Payable Wages 

(On Behalf of Plaintiff and the Massachusetts Class) 

 

87. All previous paragraphs are incorporated as though fully set forth herein. 

88. The Massachusetts Wage Act (“MWA”) requires that employees be fully 

compensated when due and payable. See Mass. Gen. L. c. 149 § 148. 

89. Defendant is subject to the requirements of the MWA because Defendant is an 

“employer” under Mass. Gen. L. c. 149 § 1. 

90. During all relevant times, the members of the Massachusetts Class, including 
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Plaintiff, were covered employees entitled to the above-described MWA’s protections. See Mass. 

Gen. L. c. 149 § 1.  

91. Defendant violated the Wage Act by failing to timely pay Plaintiff and Class 

Members all wages that are due and payable. 

92. Defendant’s failure to pay overtime wages as required by 29 U.S.C. § 207 and 

Mass. Gen. L. c. 151 § 1, 1A, deprived Plaintiff and Class Members the full amount of their earned 

wages when same became due and payable, including upon termination. 

93. Defendant’s failures to timely pay due and payable wages were repeated, knowing 

and willful. 

94. As a result of Defendant’s violation of the Massachusetts Wage Act, Plaintiff and 

Class Members have incurred harm and loss in an amount to be determined at trial, along with 

mandatory treble damages, attorneys’ fees and litigation costs. See Mass. Gen. L. c. 149 § 150. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff seeks the following relief on behalf of herself and all others 

similarly situated: 

1. An order permitting this litigation to proceed as a collective action pursuant to 29 

U.S.C. §216(b); 

2. Prompt notice, pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b), of this litigation to all potential 

FLSA Collective Members; 

3. An order permitting this litigation to proceed as a class action pursuant to Fed. R. 

Civ. P. 23 on behalf of the Massachusetts Class; 

4. Injunctive relief, requiring Defendant to cease its illegal practices; 

5. Restitution for all wages and other damages that are owed to Plaintiffs and class 

and collective members as described above; 

6. Statutory trebling of all wage-related damages; 

7. Pre-judgment and post-judgment interest; 

Case 1:20-cv-10529-NMG   Document 1   Filed 03/17/20   Page 15 of 16



16 

8. Back pay damages for unpaid overtime compensation and prejudgment interest to 

the fullest extent permitted under the law; 

9. Liquidated and exemplary damages to the fullest extent permitted under the law; 

10. Litigation costs, expenses, and attorneys' fees to the fullest extent permitted under 

the law; and 

11. Such other and further relief as this Court deems just and proper.  

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

Plaintiff hereby demands a jury trial on all claims and issues for which Plaintiff and the 

Classes are entitled to a jury. 

Date: March 17, 2020  Respectfully submitted, 

 

 s/ Harold Lichten    

 
Harold Lichten (Mass. BBO #549689) 

Anastasia Doherty (Mass. BBO #705288) 

LICHTEN & LISS-RIORDAN, P.C. 

729 Boylston Street, Suite 2000 

Boston, MA 02116 

617-994-5800 

617-994-5801 (fax) 
hlichten@llrlaw.com 
adoherty@llrlaw.com 

 

Sarah R. Schalman-Bergen (PA 206211)  

Camille Fundora Rodriguez (PA 312533) 

Krysten Connon (PA 314190) 

BERGER MONTAGUE PC 

1818 Market Street, Suite 3600 

Philadelphia, PA  19103 

Tel.: (215) 875-3000 

Fax: (215) 875-4604 

sschalman-bergen@bm.net 

crodriguez@bm.net 
kconnon@bm.net 

 

Attorneys for Plaintiff and the Proposed 

Classes 
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Laurie Pearl, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated

Norfolk County, MA

 

Clearlink Partners, LLC

Marietta, GA

Fair Labor Standards Act ("FLSA") 29 U.S.C. §§ 201, et seq.

Misclassification and related wage violations

03/17/2020 s/ Harold Lichten
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS 44

Authority For Civil Cover Sheet

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and service of pleading or other papers as
required by law, except as provided by local rules of court.  This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is
required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet.  Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of
Court for each civil complaint filed.  The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:

I.(a) Plaintiffs-Defendants.  Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant.  If the plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use 
only the full name or standard abbreviations.  If the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and 
then the official, giving both name and title.

   (b) County of Residence.  For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the 
time of filing.  In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing.  (NOTE: In land 
condemnation cases, the county of residence of the "defendant" is the location of the tract of land involved.)

   (c) Attorneys.  Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record.  If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment, noting
in this section "(see attachment)".

II.  Jurisdiction.  The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Rule 8(a), F.R.Cv.P., which requires that jurisdictions be shown in pleadings.  Place an "X" 
in one of the boxes.  If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below.
United States plaintiff.  (1) Jurisdiction based on 28 U.S.C. 1345 and 1348.  Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here.
United States defendant.  (2) When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an "X" in this box.
Federal question.  (3) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment 
to the Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States.  In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes 
precedence, and box 1 or 2 should be marked.
Diversity of citizenship.  (4) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1332, where parties are citizens of different states.  When Box 4 is checked, the 
citizenship of the different parties must be checked.  (See Section III below; NOTE: federal question actions take precedence over diversity 
cases.)

III.  Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties.  This section of the JS 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above.  Mark this
section for each principal party.

IV. Nature of Suit.  Place an "X" in the appropriate box.  If there are multiple nature of suit codes associated with the case, pick the nature of suit code 
that is most applicable.  Click here for: Nature of Suit Code Descriptions.  

V. Origin.  Place an "X" in one of the seven boxes.
Original Proceedings.  (1) Cases which originate in the United States district courts.
Removed from State Court.  (2) Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 U.S.C., Section 1441.  
When the petition for removal is granted, check this box.
Remanded from Appellate Court.  (3) Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action.  Use the date of remand as the filing 
date.
Reinstated or Reopened.  (4) Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court.  Use the reopening date as the filing date.
Transferred from Another District.  (5) For cases transferred under Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1404(a).  Do not use this for within district transfers or 
multidistrict litigation transfers.
Multidistrict Litigation – Transfer.  (6) Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 U.S.C. 
Section 1407. 
Multidistrict Litigation – Direct File.  (8) Check this box when a multidistrict case is filed in the same district as the Master MDL docket. 
PLEASE NOTE THAT THERE IS NOT AN ORIGIN CODE 7.  Origin Code 7 was used for historical records and is no longer relevant due to 
changes in statue.

VI. Cause of Action.  Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause.  Do not cite jurisdictional 
statutes unless diversity.  Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553  Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service

VII. Requested in Complaint.  Class Action.  Place an "X" in this box if you are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
for the

__________ District of __________ 

)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Plaintiff

v. Civil Action No.

Defendant

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address)

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.  The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. 
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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          District of Massachusetts

Laurie Pearl, individually and on behalf of all persons 
similarly situated

Clearlink Partners, LLC

Clearlink Partners, LLC 
574 Gramercy Drive 
Marietta, GA 30068 

Harold Lichten & Anastasia Doherty 
LICHTEN & LISS-RIORDAN, P.C 
729 Boylston St, Suite 2000, Boston, MA 02116 
Sarah Schalman-Bergen, Camille Fundora Rodriguez, Krysten Connon 
BERGER MONTAGUE PC 
1818 Market St, Suite 3600, Philadelphia, PA 19103
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Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE

(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (l))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date) .

’ I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ; or

’ I left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)

, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

’ I served the summons on (name of individual) , who is

 designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or

’ I returned the summons unexecuted because ; or

’ Other (specify):

.

My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ .

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:
Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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CONSENT TO JOIN AND AUTHORIZATION TO REPRESENT 
Pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) 

 

1.  I consent and agree to pursue my claims under the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. 

§§201, et seq. (“FLSA”) arising out of my work with Clearlink Partners, LLC and/or related entities and 

individuals (“Clearlink”).  

 

2.  I worked for Clearlink from on or about ___________________ (month, year) to on or 

about ___________________ (month, year). During this time, I worked for Clearlink in the following 

state(s): ______________________________________________________. 

 

3.  I understand that this lawsuit is brought under the FLSA.  I hereby consent, agree, and 

“opt in” to become a plaintiff herein and to be bound by any judgment by the Court or any settlement of 

this action.  

 

4.  I hereby designate Berger Montague PC, at 1818 Market Street, Suite 3600, Philadelphia, 

Pennsylvania 19103, and Lichten & Liss-Riordan PC, at 729 Boylston Street, Suite 2000, Boston, MA 

02116 (together “Plaintiff’s Counsel”), to represent me for all purposes in this action or any subsequent 

action against Clearlink. 

 

5.  I also designate the named Plaintiff in this action, the collective action representative, as 

my agent to make decisions on my behalf concerning the litigation, including the method and manner of 

conducting this litigation, entering into settlement agreements, entering into an agreement with Plaintiff’s 

Counsel concerning attorneys’ fees and costs, and all other matters pertaining to this lawsuit.   

 

 

Signature: _________________________________________________________________ 

 

Date:  _________________________________________________________________ 

 

Name:  _________________________________________________________________ 

 

Address: ____________________________________ 

 

Telephone: _____________________________________________________ 

 

E-mail:  ______________________________________ 

 

 

COMPLETE AND RETURN TO: 

BERGER MONTAGUE PC 

ATTN: Alex Grayson 

1818 Market Street, Suite 3600 

Philadelphia, PA 19103 

Tel: (215) 875-4687 

Fax: (215) 875-4604 

Email: agrayson@bm.net 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E705F042-96AE-442C-986F-D95FD7B1DBC8

11/21/2019

10/2019

Massachusetts

02/2019

Laurie Pearl
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF MASSACHUSETTS

1. Title of case (name of first party on each side only)

2. Category in which the case belongs based upon the numbered nature of suit code listed on the civil cover sheet.   (See local

rule 40.1(a)(1)).

I. 160, 400, 410, 441, 535, 830*, 835*, 850, 891, 893, R.23, REGARDLESS OF NATURE OF SUIT.

II. 110, 130, 190, 196, 370, 375, 376, 440, 442, 443, 445, 446, 448, 470, 751, 820*, 840*, 895, 896, 899.

III.
120, 140, 150, 151, 152, 153, 195, 210, 220, 230, 240, 245, 290, 310, 315, 320, 330, 340, 345, 350, 355, 360, 362, 
365, 367, 368, 371, 380, 385, 422, 423, 430, 450, 460, 462, 463, 465, 480, 490, 510, 530, 540, 550, 555, 560, 625, 
690, 710, 720, 740, 790, 791, 861-865, 870, 871, 890, 950.

*Also complete AO 120 or AO 121. for patent, trademark or copyright cases.

3. Title and number, if any, of related cases.  (See local rule 40.1(g)).  If more than one prior related case has been filed in this
district please indicate the title and number of the first filed case in this court.

4. Has a prior action between the same parties and based on the same claim ever been filed in this court?

YES   9 NO    9
5. Does the complaint in this case question the constitutionality of an act of congress affecting the public interest?    (See 28 USC

§2403)

YES     9 NO     9
If so, is the U.S.A. or an officer, agent or employee of the U.S. a party? 

YES     9 NO     9
6. Is this case required to be heard and determined by a district court of three judges pursuant to title 28 USC §2284?

YES     9 NO     9
7. Do all of the parties  in this action, excluding governmental agencies of the United States and the Commonwealth of

Massachusetts (“governmental agencies”),  residing in Massachusetts reside in the same division? -  (See Local Rule 40.1(d)).

YES     9 NO     9
A. If yes, in which division do all of the non-governmental parties reside?

Eastern Division      9 Central Division    9 Western Division    9
B. If no, in which division do the majority of the plaintiffs or the only parties, excluding governmental agencies, 

residing in Massachusetts reside?

Eastern Division      9 Central Division    9 Western Division    9
8. If filing a Notice of Removal - are there any motions pending in the state court requiring the attention of this Court?  (If yes,

submit a separate sheet identifying the motions)

YES     9 NO     9

(PLEASE TYPE OR PRINT)

ATTORNEY'S NAME

ADDRESS

TELEPHONE NO.

(CategoryForm1-2019.wpd ) 

Case 1:20-cv-10529-NMG   Document 1-4   Filed 03/17/20   Page 1 of 1

Pearl v. Clearlink Partners LLC

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

Harold Lichten

729 Boylston Street, Suite 2000, Boston, MA 02116

617-994-5800


